
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – September 12, 2022   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: September 12, 2022 

Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
 Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 

 
Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment 
use the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record 
may be submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

             
 
1. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

 

3. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg. 1: Agenda 
 
 

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
 
 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg. 3: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of August 22, 2022 
C. Pg. 6: Approval of:  

 
Pg. 27: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$4,145,643.78 are included in Warrants noted above:  

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13275 to 13275 - $700.00 (Included in A/P Warrant 57822) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13276 to 13312 - $149,011.25 (Included in A/P Warrant 

57827) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13313 to 13344 - $110,087.05 (Included in A/P Warrant 

57847) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13345 to 13351 - $847,998.13 (Included in A/P Warrant 

57873) 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57822 to 57822 totaling: $ 700.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57823 to 57843 totaling: $ 165,105.95 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57844 to 57871 totaling: $ 232,144.46 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57872 to 57880 totaling: $ 5,632,869.68 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107647 to 107650 totaling: $ 23,729.69 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57881 to 57891 totaling: $ 95,257.75 

GRAND TOTAL $ 6,149,807.53 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – September 12, 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 
 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 56080 to 

56395 - $2,962,292.47 (Included in A/P Warrant 57875) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13352 to 13369 - $75,554.88 (Included in A/P Warrant 

57882) 
 

 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
A. Pg. 64: Board Policy 2.16 Conflict of Interest & Gifts – Chief Morrow 

 
7. New Business (First Reading) 

A. Pg. 68: Board Policy 2.15 Equal Employment Opportunity – Chief Morrow 
 
8. Considerations and Requests 

A. Pg. 73: Firefighter Hiring Notification – HRD Washo 
 

B. Pg. 75: PXT Agreement – Chief Morrow 
 

C. Pg. 103: Year 2 of FIIRE Program – AC McKenzie 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg. 106: Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 

B. Pg. 108: Field Operations – AC Kent 
 

C. Pg. 109: EMS – AC Bouchard 
 

D. Pg. 110: DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 

E. Pg. 111: Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Morrow 
 

 

10. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg. 112: Employee Recognition 
 

 

11. Commissioner Comments 
 

 

12. Adjournment 
 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   August 22, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

August 22, 2022 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 5:00 p.m.  
A remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Chief Morrow, Deputy Chief 
Karns, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs Stueve, McKenzie, L726 President 
Aaron James, and Executive Assistant Paramapoonya, recorder.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Coleman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences: Julie Door 
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of August 8, 2022    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
excused absence of Julie Door, along with the Consent Agenda with warrants totaling 
$362,588.13. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No Unfinished Business 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 

A. Board Policy 2.16 Conflict of Interest & Gifts 
 
Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 2.16 Conflict of Interest & Gifts. All current CPFR 
Board Policies will undergo a process of reformatting, which will include a 1st and 2nd 
reading. Moving forward, the rhythm of this administrative process will continue with one 
new policy at each Board Meeting.  

 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57778 to 57778 totaling: $ 6,275.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57779 to 57801 totaling: $ 180,794.35 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57802 to 57802 totaling: $ 1,473.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57803 to 57821 totaling: $ 174,045.78 

GRAND TOTAL $ 362,588.13 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   August 22, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

A. Binder Lift Device Request for Funding 
 
AC McKenzie explained that the Binder Lift Devices will help to reduce musculoskeletal 
injuries when lifting larger patients. The long-term goal is to reduce lower back and 
shoulder injuries.  Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to 
authorize and appropriate $24,000 for 30 Binder Lift Devices in the General Fund, Division 
250 Health & Safety. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker: FD Robacker reviewed updated revenues and expenditures 

in the June Checkbook.  
 

B. Logistics/AC Stueve: AC Stueve discussed the completion of the Station 69 Asphalt 
Project. The result was great. He also reviewed the status of various units in our 
fleet.  
 

C. Prevention & Education/AC Berdan:  
 

D. Health & Safety/AC McKenzie: AC McKenzie mentioned that there were no OSHA 
injuries to report for July for the first time in two years. The Firefighter Injury and 
Reduction Program has been extended.  
 

E. DC Administration/DC Karns: DC Karns provided an update on all current land and 
building projects. Everything is still on track and moving forward.  

 
F. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow: The Training Consortium process is moving at a 

fast pace. All agencies are working very well together. Chief Morrow gave a status 
report for the Assistant Chief of Training position.  

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Employee Recognition: Chair Holm stated that it is great to see the continued 
employee recognition from various personnel.  

 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Holm: Would like to possibly look at various areas that we could work on as an 
organization, in regard to the ballot measures.  
 
Vice Chair Stringfellow: No comment, everything sounds great! 
 
Commissioner Willis: I am glad we are working toward getting the lift devices on the rigs. 
This will prevent a lot of back problems. It is also nice to see that there are no injuries to 
report this month. Chief Karns, thank you for all your continued efforts. It is also great to 
see the Training Consortium moving along.  

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   August 22, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Commissioner Coleman: Everything is great! 
 
Commissioner Mitchell: Nice to see everyone. I think we are doing great, keep up the good 
work! 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
At 5:38 p.m., Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Stringfellow seconded to 
move into Executive Session for 20 minutes under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g). MOTION 
CARRIED.  
 
At 5:58 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to 
return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the 
retirement agreement regarding Deputy Chief Karns.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Coleman moved and Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:02 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 

      
ARIEL PARAMAPOONYA 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title:  Board Policy 2.16 - Conflicts of Interest & Gifts: Review 

Attachments:  Board Policy 2.16 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
“To approve the second reading of Board Policy 2.16 - Conflicts of Interest & Gifts as presented 
by Staff.” 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 2.16 - Conflicts of Interest & Gifts has been presented to the Board for its first 
reading. No additional comments or suggested edits have been received by Staff since the first 
reading. 
 
Board Policy 2.16 - Conflicts of Interest & Gifts is now being presented for its second reading 
and approval. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

64



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 2.16 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: September 14, 2020  

LAST REVISED: September 08, 2022 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

SUBJECT: CONFLICT OF INTEREST & GIFTS 

 

PURPOSE: To provide guidance to all District Members so that they may avoid a conflict of interest 

with regard to their employment with the District. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate, within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: It shall be the policy of the District that all Members take steps to avoid conflicts of 

interest and process gifts accordingly as outlined in RCW, and in no way bring discredit 

to an individual or the District. 

 

PROCEDURE:  

 

I. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  

 

A. A conflict of interest exists if an employee is in a position where personal 

interest may have an adverse effect on motivation or the proper performance of 

job duties. The best interest of the District must be the only consideration, and 

the interest of individual employee cannot be permitted to play any part in such 

transactions.  

 

B. To avoid conflicts of interest, each employee must observe the following:  

 

1. Maintain a high standard of conduct and disqualify yourself from 

exerting influence in any transaction where you may gain any financial 

benefit.  

 

2. Report to the District any financial interest which you or any member of 

your family may have in any concern doing business with the District.  

 

3. Report promptly any remuneration you receive from an individual or 

concern with which the District does business.  

 

65



4. Accept no cash or no merchandise from anyone who has a business 

relationship with the District.  

 

5. Refrain from lending money to, borrowing money from, or having loans 

guaranteed by anyone doing business with the District. The exception is 

that any employee may borrow from a financial institution with which 

the District does business.  

 

6. Refrain from using information or knowledge acquired by virtue of your 

position in the District for any personal gain or advantage by divulging 

such knowledge or information to anyone who would use it in any 

manner detrimental to the interests of the District.  

 

7. Report to the District any knowledge of the existence of a violation of 

this policy.   

 

II. OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT:  

 

A. An employee who serves without the District's consent as a consultant to, or as 

a director, officer, or part-time employee of, a business or agency that deals 

with the District, has a conflict of interest. This is the case even if the employee 

receives no pay from the business or agency and has no direct or indirect 

contact with it because he or she may inadvertently disclose confidential 

information. Employees must obtain the approval of their supervisor before 

accepting outside work with a business or agency that deals with the District. 

 

III. GIFTS:  

 

A. No District employee may accept gifts, other than those specified below. 

 

1. Unsolicited flowers, plants, and floral arrangements.  

2. Unsolicited advertising or promotional items of nominal value, such as 

pens and note pads.  

3. Food, beverages, and small promotional items provided at events, 

exhibitor trade show floor locations, press events, and parties funded by 

conferences or event sponsors.  

 

B. If an employee or the department receives a gift: 

  

1. If feasible, the gift is returned to the giver.  

2. If not feasible to return the gift, the gift will be given over to a charity, 

such as Local 726, for them to raffle off as part of their fundraising 

efforts.  

66



3. Gifts of food that may arrive during the holidays, and at other times, 

belong to the entire staff and shall be shared with and distributed to all 

staff in a central location. 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

67



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title:  Board Policy 2.15 - Equal Opportunity Employment & Non-Discrimination 

Attachments:  Board Policy 2.15 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 2.15 - Equal Opportunity Employment & Non-Discrimination has been reviewed by 
Staff. The policy has been moved to the new format and updated. 
 
The Policy is presented for first reading and comment. 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

68



 
 

 
 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 1 of 2 
Policy  215 – Equal Employment Opportunity    

Approved by  _____________ 
                Fire Chief 

 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
NUMBER .....  ..........  ......... 215 
CATEGORY  ..........  ......... Personnel  
EFFECTIVE .  ..........  ......... DATE: 03/21/95 
REVISED .....  ..........  ......... DATE: 08/23/04; 03-23-15 
 
 
 
REFERENCE 
Title VII of the 19643 Civil Rights Act, as amended 
The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 
The Americans with Disabilities Act 
The Washington State Law Against Discrimination 
The Equal Pay Act of 1963 
RCW 49.60 
Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA) 
Policy 217 Harassment 
 
SCOPE 
All Personnel 
 
PURPOSE 
To establish procedures for Equal Employment Opportunity. 
 
POLICY 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue values diversity in the work place and does not discriminate in its 
employment practices with regard to gender, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, 
sexual orientation and gender expression/identity, age, the presence of any sensory, mental or 
physical disability, genetic information, or any other factor protected by federal, state, or local 
law. The District prohibits discrimination in all its employment practices.  
 
This requirement extends to all areas of employment and to all recruitment, selection, 
placement, promotion, job assignment, compensation, disciplinary measures, demotions, 
layoffs, job terminations, testing, training, awards, benefits, daily working conditions, and all 
other terms and conditions of employment. Personnel decisions will be based on individual 
qualifications and performance, staffing requirements, and in accordance with governing 
Federal and State Laws, budgeted authority and collective bargaining agreements.  
 
PROCEDURE 
Nondiscriminatory Work Environment. In order to foster and maintain a harmonious working 
environment, comments or actions demeaning or offensive to any individual based on any of 
the above-mentioned protected factors will not be tolerated by the District. Violation of these  
Procedures will be cause for disciplinary action up to an including termination.  
 

69



 
 

 
 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 2 of 2 
Policy  215 – Equal Employment Opportunity    

Approved by  _____________ 
                Fire Chief 

 Victims of Discriminatory Treatment. Any employee who feels he or she has been the 
 victim of or a witness to discriminatory treatment in violation of these procedures is 
 encouraged to bring this concern to the attention of his or her supervisor or the Human 
 Resources Department. Supervisors must inform the Human Resources Department as 
 soon as possible of the complaint, and the Human Resources Department will coordinate 
 with the Deputy Chief on the investigation of the complaint. No retaliation of any kind will 
 be permitted against an employee who makes a “good faith” complaint. See also Anti-
 Harassment Policy #217.  
 
 Employee/Supervisor Responsibility. Each employee and every supervisor of the District 
 is responsible for maintaining an appropriate work environment. It is the intent of the 
 District to maintain a nondiscriminatory environment, but it can only do so effectively when 
 each and every employee takes responsibility for maintaining that environment by 
 promptly reporting inappropriate or discriminatory behavior.  
 
 Discriminatory Action by Non-Employees. Victims or witnesses to discriminatory actions 
 against District employees by non-employees of the District should follow the same 
 procedure contained in this policy above. Supervisors are responsible for ensuring a non-
 discriminatory work environment and should report actions of non-employees to the 
 Deputy Chief, who should investigate the complaint, and, if confirmed, inform the 
 perpetrator of the discriminatory comments or action of the District’s procedures against 
 such behavior. If the individual continues to harass the employee, the employee should 
 be removed or otherwise protected from future contacts with the individual with no 
 negative impact to the employee.  
 
Affirmative Action. The District will comply with all Federal and State Laws which may require 
the development and implementation of Affirmative Action plans and reporting procedures.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A 

70



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 2.15 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: December 6, 2018 

REVIEWED: September 6, 2022 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

SUBJECT: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY & NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

PURPOSE: To establish procedures for Equal Employment Opportunity. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: Central Pierce Fire & Rescue values diversity in the workplace and does not discriminate 

in its employment practices with regard to gender, marital status, race, color, creed, 

national origin, sexual orientation and gender expression/identity, age, the presence of 

any sensory, mental or physical disability, genetic information, or any other factor 

protected by federal, state, or local law. The District prohibits discrimination in all its 

employment practices.  

 

This requirement extends to all areas of employment and to all recruitment, selection, 

placement, promotion, job assignment, compensation, disciplinary measures, 

demotions, layoffs, job terminations, testing, training, awards, benefits, daily working 

conditions, and all other terms and conditions of employment. Personnel decisions will 

be based on individual qualifications and performance, staffing requirements, and in 

accordance with governing Federal and State Laws, budgeted authority, and collective 

bargaining agreements.  

 

PROCEDURE:  

 

I. NON-DISCRIMINATORY WORK ENVIRONMENT:  

 

A. In order to foster and maintain a harmonious working environment, comments or 

actions demeaning or offensive to any individual based on any of the above-

mentioned protected factors, will not be tolerated by the District. Violation of these 

procedures will be cause for disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

 

 

71



 

II. VICTIMS OF DISCRIMINATORY TREATMENT:  

 

A. Any employee who feels he or she has been the victim of or a witness to 

discriminatory treatment in violation of these procedures is encouraged to bring this 

concern to the attention of his or her supervisor or the Human Resources 

Department. Supervisors must inform the Human Resources Department of the 

complaint as soon as possible, and the Human Resources Department will 

coordinate with the Deputy Chief on the investigation of the complaint. No 

retaliation of any kind will be permitted against an employee who makes a “good 

faith” complaint. See also Board Policy 2.17- Anti-Harassment. 

 

III. EMPLOYEE/SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITY:  

 

A. Each employee and every supervisor of the District is responsible for maintaining an 

appropriate work environment. It is the intent of the District to maintain a 

nondiscriminatory environment, but it can only do so effectively when each and 

every employee takes responsibility for maintaining that environment by promptly 

reporting inappropriate or discriminatory behavior. 

 

IV. DISCRIMINATORY ACTION BY NON-EMPLOYEES:  

 

A. Victims or witnesses of discriminatory actions against District employees by non-

employees of the District should follow the same procedure included in this policy 

above. Supervisors are responsible for ensuring a non-discriminatory work 

environment and should report actions of non-employees to a Deputy Chief, who 

should investigate the complaint, and, if confirmed, inform the perpetrator of the 

discriminatory comments or action of the District’s procedures against such 

behavior. If the individual continues to harass the employee, the employee shall be 

removed or otherwise protected from future contact with the individual with no 

negative impact on the employee. 

 

V. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION:  

 

A. The District will comply with all Federal and State Laws which may require the 

development and implementation of Affirmative Action plans and reporting 

procedures. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

72



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   September 12, 2022 

Item Title:    Firefighter Hiring Notification 

Attachments:    Academy 22-2 Hiring Notifications 

Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Attached please find the Hiring Notifications for Academy 22-2.   
 
These documents memorialize the hire date and seniority rank of the new employees.   
 
I will be at the meeting to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 

73



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

 

 

 

 
 
After completion of a physical agility test, written test, pre-screening interview, oral 
board, suitability assessment profile, background investigation and Chief's interview, 
evaluation scores reflect the following standings: 
 
Hire Date: September 6, 2022 
 

Seniority Rank Candidate 

1 Schliesman, Nadia 

2 Wehmhoefer, Nicholas 

3 Taylor, Matthew 

4 Ausenhus, Luke 

5 Beausoleil, Kevin 

6 Brown, Lane 

7 Cox, Lauren 

8 Gillespie, Joseph 

9 Hoar, Frankie 

10 Schaefer, Peter 

11 Strojan, Frederick 

12 Kondra, Joshua 

13 Kuffler, Ryan 

14 Langlow, Creighton 

15 Michel, Maurice 

16 Sowards, Evan 

17 Silver-Colson, Emily 

18 Weidman, Ryan 

19 Gaffin, Devin 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Dustin Morrow 
Fire Chief 
 

 

 
Firefighter Hiring Notification 

Academy 22-2 
 

 

74



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title: PXT Agreement 

Attachments:  PXT Agreement & Insurance Binder 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION:  
 
“To approve the Fire Chief to sign and execute the PXT Settlement and Partnership Agreement 
as presented.” 
 
SUMMARY:    
 
The District and PXT have a long history of cooperation. This history has resulted in many 
trained Firefighters at Central Pierce and beyond. As the District moves towards the Training 
Consortium and an overall training grounds expansion at the current Station 60 site, the District 
has the need to: 
 

1. Clarify real property that may be owned by PXT but is needed by the District and is on 
District property. 

2. Enter into a specific partnership agreement for storage space and additional training 
courses offered by PXT and that are needed by the District. 

 
The attached agreement identifies the terms that have been tentatively agreed to between PXT 
and the District. Staff is seeking Board approval to finalize the agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None outside of current expenses. 
  
 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Date September 12, 2022 

Item Title: Enrollment in Year 2 of FIIRE Program 

Attachments: Letter of Intent    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by: AC McKenzie 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION:     
 
“To authorize Health & Safety Division to enroll CPFR for year 2 of LNI FIIRE Program.” 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Health & Safety Division is requesting the approval to enroll CPFR for year 2 of 
the LNI FIIRE Program.  This is a continuation of year 1 Pilot, with a 10% 
reduction on insurance premiums for participation. Emphasis of the FIIRE 
program for year 2 is on vulnerability assessment through the Fallen Firefighter 
Foundation, training for safety committee members by LNI, develop a Safety 
Improvement Plan, Review and update CPFR Accident Prevention Program, 
submit Quarterly Reports, and participate in the Firefighter Health & Safety 
Collaborative Meetings.  
 
 
 
 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  0  

103



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
17520 22nd Ave East 
Tacoma, WA 98445 
 
 
 
09/12/2022 
 
 
Department of Labor and Industries 
FIIRE Program 
7273 Linderson Way SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 
 
 
RE: Intent to pursue the Firefighter Injury and Illness Reduction (FIIRE) Initiative Pilot Program Year Two. 
 
 
Dear FIIRE Program,  
 
 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue in Pierce County Washington is eager to partner with the Department of 
Labor and Industries (L&I) in our shared mission to decrease injuries and illnesses by declaring our 
participation in the FIIRE Pilot Program. We know that commitment from the organizations leadership is 
vital to the success of this safety initiative. We believe that the program requirements will put our vision 
and values into practice, and we are committed as an organization from the top down to make the 
necessary changes to become a safer and healthier department.  
 
Through this letter, we acknowledge the roles and responsibilities we will fulfill in this partnership. We 
strongly support this Pilot Program and the focus on reducing exposures to carcinogens and other health 
exposures among firefighters through evidence based interventions. We understand this is a voluntary 
program, and our department looks forward to a year of learning how to mitigate hazards, respond to 
risks, and improve the health of our personnel.     
 
We understand that to receive program benefits, we must commit to the program for at least one year. 
We understand that we will also have the opportunity to apply for a financial grant to purchase 
equipment for the implementation of the best practices developed by L&I.  
 
We at Central Pierce Fire & Rescue sign this letter to express our commitment to participating in the 
FIIRE Pilot Program, and receiving a premium discount at the start of the program. We look forward to 
collaborating with FIIRE group as we work together to improve safety and health in the firefighting 
industry.   
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 

104



_______________________________         ______________________________ 
Department Fire Chief                                                             Date 
 
 
_______________________________         ______________________________ 
Union Official                                                                            Date 
 
 
_______________________________                          ______________________________ 
Authorized Jurisdictional Officer                                           Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    September 12, 2022 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:    N/A 

Submitted by:  HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. Recruitment 

 
A. Current Recruitments 

i. Academy 22-2 
 Academy start date is September 6th with 19 candidates, the Hiring Notification is in 

your packet tonight. 
ii. Assistant Chief - Training 

 There are six (6) candidates in the process.  They are currently working on a project 
that is due by September 15th and interviews will take place in late September.  

iii. Human Resources Analyst 
 Applications were accepted and online testing was conducted in August through 

early September.   
 Oral Board Interviews are being held on September 14th. 

iv. Academy 23-1 
 Applications from lateral (FF-EMT and FF-PM) candidates were accepted through 

September 4th.  Oral Board interviews for all qualified candidates will be the week of 
September 19th. 

 We hosted a live Q&A through Zoom for candidates on August 31st and it was 
a success with approximately 50 attendees. 

v. Support Specialist - Administration 
 We are currently running an internal recruitment to refill the position that was vacated 

by the promotion of Ariel Paramapoonya to the Executive Assistant. 
 
 

B. Upcoming Recruitments/Other Staffing work 
i. Suppression Lieutenant  
ii. Entry Level for Academy 23-2 

iii. Positions approved in the 2023 budget 
 
 

106



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 
 
2. Other Projects 

A. Job Analysis  
i. We have executed the contract for the large Job Analysis project that is long overdue.  That 

project will run from August of 2022 – February of 2023 and will result in in-depth job 
descriptions and physical analysis of all uniformed personnel from Firefighter through 
Assistant Chief 

 There will be a total of seven different sessions, one per month, and most are 1-2 
day workshops.  Some workshops will require up to twelve (12) personnel.  

 
B. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) 

i. We have executed the contract for the first step on our DEI journey.  This work will span a 
number of years.  

 The first step is for our partner, Eight-Twenty-Eight, to begin a small pilot program 
with 40 individuals, comprised of firefighters, support staff, and administration that 
will individually undergo an Intercultural Development Inventory (IDI) Assessment 
and then have an individual review and personalized coaching session with our 
consultant.   

 The first step in this process will be completed from October – December. 
 

C. Negotiations 
i. Local 726 Non-Uniformed negotiations began in July.  We have had three sessions to date 

and have one more scheduled for later in September.   
ii. The OPEIU contract will expire on December 31st.  We have had our first meeting and have 

six more sessions scheduled through December.   
   
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

107



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title: Field Operations Division Report 

Attachments: N/A  

Submitted by: AC Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. Seasonal Hydrant Workers 

 
A. Our Seasonal Hydrant workers have finished for the year and have put up some 

impressive numbers: 
i. They painted 40 Hydrants 
ii. Serviced 742 Firgrove Water Hydrants 
iii. Serviced 405 Spanaway Water Hydrants 
iv. Serviced 59 Rainier View Hydrants 
v. Total Hydrants = 1206 in 2.5 months. 

 
2.  Washington State Fair 

 
A. Washington State Fair began September 2nd and runs through the 25th (closed 

Tuesdays). Please visit this year. 
 

B. List of Fair Resources: 

 E70 

 M70 

 M702 

 M708 (Rodeo Crew) 

 M709 (Concert Crew) 

 BERT 70 

 First Aid Room 

 Pub Ed Crew 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 

108



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title: EMS Division Report 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   
 

1. Paramedic Students 
 

A. Our 6 paramedic students start school on September 26th. 
 

2. IV Pumps Update 
 

A. IV pumps are being programmed and libraries being built. Planning on a 
November launch for the IV pumps. 

 

3. Pilot Program 
A. Asked for and received permission from PCEMS to run a pilot program utilizing 

our IV pumps and nitroglycerine for pulmonary edema patients.  Tacoma Fire 
Department has subsequently joined the pilot program.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

109



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title:  Operations Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by DC Stueve 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Training Division – Update  

 
A. Academy Class 22-2 is underway: 

i. This class will be audited by our consortium partners 
ii. We are scheduled at 24 weeks, with graduation on February 16th, 2023. 
iii. This class will also include a participant from Central Mason 

 
B. Division staff, along with HR Analyst Jackie Wood, were successful in achieving all 

necessary ProBoard reaccreditation certification levels. 
 

2. Officer Development & Member Resilience Training – Silouan Green 
 

A. Leadership – Fundamentals for Leading a Resilient Department During Troubling 
Times  

i. October 3rd and 4th (two-day course) 
 

B. Individual – Understanding and Responding to the Traumas of Service 
i. September 29th or 30th (one-day courses) 

 
C. Family Day – Tough Together – Principles for Failing Growing Stronger 

i. October 2nd (one afternoon) 
 

3. Strategic Plan Initiative – Nash: Managing with Mind & Heart 
A. Part One of the abridged curriculum for all members begins October 4th  

i. Our annual full-course offering is scheduled to begin October 3rd. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 

110



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Date: September 12, 2022 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow   

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD: 

SUMMARY: 

LABOR MANAGEMENT: 
Staff continues to work with leadership from Local 726 on contract implementation 
elements. Significant progress is being made and I am very pleased with the highly 
collaborative process. 

TRAINING CONSORTIUM: 
Work continues on the Pierce County Training Consortium. Weekly meetings are 
underway with combined staff from all five agencies. We are on track to be doing 
combined training for all five agencies starting in early 2023. 

111



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

August 28, 2022 

Acting Lieutenant 
Logan Lambert 

Dear Logan, 

On behalf of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, I want to commend and acknowledge your actions 
taken on behalf of your crew on August 3, 2022. 

On Wednesday, August 3, 2022, E69 was dispatched to 15801 110th Ave E for a possible 
overdose patient. Upon arrival, you found what you initially thought was an employee who had 
possibly overdosed. Your crew provided treatment and the patient was transported by CPFR.   

It was after the patient had left, that the events of that day began to develop. Your crew trying to 
determine what the patient had taken was exposed to a substance that affected FM Jamal 
George and FF Kendall Cotter.  

After realizing what happened, you quickly acted to provide aid to your crew. You stayed calm, 
maintained control of the scene, and ensured that additional resources were dispatched to help 
the firefighters and the evolving incident.  

Calls that impact your crew’s health and well-being can be very emotional and stressful. You 
demonstrated composure and professionalism during a very stressful incident. I am proud of 
your actions that day. 

Respectfully, 

Adam Jackson, Battalion Chief 

Cc: Personnel Fire 
BOC Packet 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax

www.centralpiercefire.org

112

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/

	1 - 2022-09-12 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2022-08-22 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2022_09_12 Warrant Approval
	6A - BOD 2.16 AIS Second Read
	6A1- BOD 2.16 Conflict of Interests and Gifts CLEAN- Morrow
	7A - BOD 2.15 AIS First Read
	7A1 - Old Policy 215 Equal Opportunity Employment
	7A2 - New BOD 2.15 Equal Opportunity Employment
	8A - 9.12.2022  Firefighter Hiring Notifications
	8A1 - Attachment -Academy 22-2 Hiring Notification List - Washo
	8B - PXT Agreement AIS 9.6.22
	8B1 - PXT Agreement Reduced
	8B2 - Cert of Ins
	8C - FIIRE Program
	8C1 - Final_FIIRE Letter of Intent Y2
	9A - 09.12.2022   HR Report
	9B - Operations AIS 9-12-2022
	9C - EMS AIS Sept 2022
	9D - OPSEC AIS 09.12.22
	9E - FC Report AIS 9.12.22
	10A - Corres - Lambert



